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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Report on the Audif of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (“the
Company®), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its

profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Cede of Lthics’ 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requireinents that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our andit opinion on the financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter — Income tax search

We draw atiention to Note 33A of the financial statements relating to a search under Section 132 of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 conducted by the Income Tax Department on the Company’s Premnises and other
Locations and few of its group entities and residence of few of its key managerial personnel.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our anditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standaxds) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that ate reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concert, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and vsing the
goitig concern basis of accounting unless management ejther intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaneial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wliole are
free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gnarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of vsers taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to-
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collugion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financia
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of sugh
controls,
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
_estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continve as 2 going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
ceage to continue as a going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during ounr audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safegnards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for, backup of books of accounts
in respect of one of the accounting software has not been maintained on server physically
located in India and for the matters stated in the paragraph (j)(vi} below on reporting under Rule
11{g).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter - Income tax search above, in our opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the ditrectors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as gh
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(k) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
{i){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(i)

4}

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid

/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.

ii,

i,

iv,

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 33A to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢} Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

believe that the representations under sub-clause {2) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, as described in note 39 to the financial
statements, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain
access rights and also for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access
right and. in respect of a software used for maintenance of inventories for select customers.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with except that we are unable to comment on the same in respect
of the software used to maintain the information as explained in the above note.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

NP

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766 BKFFRT2531
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of cur
knowledge and belief, we state ¢hat:

(1}a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, ineluding quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipmient.

(1)(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(i)(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(i)(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the
Company.

(1)(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(i)(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for goods
in fransif, In out opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reascuable and the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.
(oods in transit have been received subseguent to the year ended March 3§, 2024,

(ii}(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs, five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security

of current assets, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clavse 3{ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(ii1)(a) During the year, the Company has provided loans to its employees and a subsidiary company as
follows;

Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries 794.43
- Others (Loan t¢ employee) 0.08
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries 78443
- Others (Loan to emplovee) NIL

Apart from above during the year, the Company has not provided ary loans and advances in nature of
loans, stood guarantee or provided securities to companies, firms, litnited liability partnerships or any e
other parties and hence not commented upor. /
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(iii)(b) During the year the investments made and terms and condition of loans given to its employees
and a subsidiary company are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. During the year, the Company
has not provided guarantees, provided securities and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans

to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties other than Joan to employees and
henee not conunented upon.

(iii)(c) In respect of a loan granted to employees and a subsidiary company, the schedule of repayment
of principal has been stipulated in the arrangement and the repayment or receipts are regular. The loans
to employees are interest free and accordingly reporting on repayment of interest is not commented
upon. The Company has not granted advance in the nature of loan to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties hence not commented upen.

(iii)(d) There are no amounts of loans which are outstanding for more than 90 days.

(iii){e) There are no loans which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or
fresh loan granted to settle overdue of existing loan given to its employee.

(i1} As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements the Company has granted loans which are
repayable on demand as stated below to a related party (ie. subsidiary companies) as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Cotiipanies Act, 2013,

Particulars Amount in lakhs
Aggregate amount of loans

- Repayable on demand 794.43
Percentage of loans to the total loans 100 %

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans given and investments made have been
complied with by the Company. The Company has not made any guarantee or provided any security to
which provision of section 186 apply and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereundet, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1} of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of pharmaceutical products and related services, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have not, however, made a delailed examination of the same.

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident find, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, dufy of excise, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custoin, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they hecame payable, are as follows:
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Statement of Arrears gf Statutory Dues Ouistanding for More than Six Months

Name of the Statute Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date  of
Dues (Rs.in which the Date | Payment
Lacs) amount relates

Payment of Bonus Payment of 17.05 2014-15 2014-15 Not yet

Act, 1956 as amended | Statutory Bonus paid

The Employees Payment of 053 | March 2019 April Not yet

Provident Funds and | Statutory 2019 paid

Miscellaneous Provident Fund

pravision Act, 1932

(vii)(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues
have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows;

Amount of Period to Forum where
Demand without | Amount paid | which the dispute i
Name of Nature of netting of amount | nnder protest | amount 1sp1(;_e 8
Statute dues paid under protest relates pendmg
. . {Financial
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) Year)
Income Dsallowances 61.57 - 2016-17 | Income tax
Tax Act, | and additions appellate
1961 {o taxable tribunal
ncome.
Income Disallowances 183,56 - 2017-18 | Commissioner
Tax Act, | and additions of Income Tax
1961 to taxable (A)
incole,.
I Disallowances 0.74 - 2019-20 | Asgsessing
nconie s
Tax Act, and additions Officer,
to taxable Income Tax
1961 )
mMeonic.
Income Computation 0.23 - 2022-23 | Assessing
Tax Act, | of Tax Officer,
1961 Liability under Income Tax
normal
Provisions and
not under
section
113BAA

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(ix)(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause ix(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(ix){(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the reguirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix}{d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
(1x)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. The
Company does not have associates or joint ventures and hence not commented upomn.

(ix){(f) The Company has not raised loans dvring the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries company. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Qrder is not applicable

to the Company. The Company does not have associates or joint ventures and hence not commented
upon.

(x)(2) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(x){b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
pastially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under andit and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)}(a) No fraud by the Company or no {raud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year,

(x1){(b) Duzing the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xi1) The Company is not & nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to (¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards,

(xiv){a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(av)(k) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the andit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clavse 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.,
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(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement Lo report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi)(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vyear and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all Habilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 34F to
the financial statements.

(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts 1 respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
10 a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 33 (IY) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Nl

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRT2531
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RELAX PHARMACEUTICALS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Relax
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our andit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Interna] Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Cuidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICATL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whefher adequate internai financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial confrols with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that & material weskness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of igternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedwes selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 1s a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately andd
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabl
agssurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permnit preparation of financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to [inancial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICATL

For 8.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

N

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRT2531
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Il amoun in IN

Particulars As at As at
Nolas March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Mon-currant assets
Property, plant and eguipment 3 1,981.34 2,033.77
Capital work-in-progress 3 2.75 36.00
Intangible assets 4 1.18 .97
Right-of-use assets 3.1 57.56 58.43
Financial assets
[nvestment in subsidiarias 5 2,390.00 2,310.00
Other Investments (=] 1.25 1.25
Other financial assets T 19.58 19.51
Income tax assets (net) 8 76.01 76.01
Other non-current assets 3 12.15 6.32
Total non-current assets 4,541.82 4,542.26
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,964.73 2,400.95
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 1,270.48 2,059.82
Cash and cash equivalents 12 763.00 453.19
Othar bank balances 13 4,637.39 4,544.10
Leans 14 754,43 =
Other financial assets 7 1.04 077
Cther current assets a 412.01 390.46
Total current assets 9,843.08 9,859.29
Total assets 14,384.90 14,401.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 30.00 30.00
Other equity 16 11,509.11 9,681.88
Total equity 11,539.11 9,911.88
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 17 89.09 81.26
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 84.06 53.58
Other non-current lizbilities 19 102.55 113.80
Total non-current liabilities 275,70 278.64
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 20
(&) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 99,75 374.24
(h) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 2,289.07 3,693.80
small enterprises
Others 21 49.07 4.43
Frovisions 17 71.48 72.41
Income tax liabilities (net) ) 37.12 41,77
Cther current liabilities 19 23.60 24.38
Total current liabilities 2,570.09 4,211.03
Total liabilities 2,845.79 4,489.67
Total equity and liabilities 14,384.90 14,401.55
summary of material accounting policies 2
3-41

Other notes on accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repert of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered accountants
Firm Reg. no. 301003E/E300005

= - e @%&\N

per Vishal Sharma ingh Akhlas Ahmed
Partner Director
M.No. 096766 DIN - 01193306 (OINM - 08973480

Place: Maw Delii
Date: 15 May 2024

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: 15 May 2024

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2024



Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

: Year ended Year ended
Mot
Patkenie ates March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
I Revenue from operations 22 21,157.01 16,378.17
II Other income 23 418.66 287.40
111 Total income (I + II) 21,575.67 16,665.57
IV Expenses
Cost of raw materials and component consumed 24 16,920.69 12,579.21
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 25 112,87 108.20
employee benefits expense 26 1,216.96 1,100.11
Finance costs 27 8.75 10.98
Oepreciation and amortization expense 28 218.55 207.34
Other expenses 29 927.99 732.72
Total expenses (IV) 19,406.81 15,138.56
vV Profit before tax (ITI-IV) 2,168.86 1,527.01
VI Tax Expense:
Current tax 30 560.62 403.06
Deferred tax 30 (4.25) (7.48)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 30 (0.567) 4.67
Total tax expense (VI) 555.70 400.25
VI Profit for the year (V-VI) 1,613.16 1,126.76
VIII Other comprehensive income
(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 34A 18.80 (4.89)
{ii) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 30 (4.73) 1.23
Other comprehensive income for the year (VIII) 14.07 (3.66)
1X¥ Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+ VIII) 1,627.23 1,123.10
Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of INR 100 each):(See note 30):
Basic EPS (in INR) 5,377.20 3,755.87
Diluted EPS (in INR) 5,377.20 3,755.87
Summary of material accounting policies 2

Other notes on accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. no. 301003E!E300Cf5r-/

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
M.Na. 096766

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

QN@&

Director
DIN - 01193306

Place; New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2024

BN

Akhlas Ahmed

Director

\@:ﬂ

DIN - 08973480

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15 May 2024



Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless gtherwise stated

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31,2023

A.Cashflow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,168.86 1,527.01
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 219.55 207.34
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (12.42) (0,171
Interest income (307.81) (184.72)
Finance costs 8.75 10.98
Dividend income fram financial assets measured at FVTPL {0.05) (0.05)
Government grant income (11.25) {11.21)
Allowance for expected credil loss - 5.21
Waerking capital adjustrments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 789.34 1,228.33
{Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 436.22 2,822.76
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial asset - others 794.09 36.41
(Increase)/ Decrease in other asset (25.54) 166.20
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 25.70 36,17
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable (1,686.72) (1,727.98)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liability [0.78} (1.73)
2,397.94 4,114.55
Income tax paid (564.60) {475.46)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 1,833.34 3,639.09
B.Cashflow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1B.55 6.24
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment (96.55) (228.25)
Purchase of investment in subsidiary {80.00) (920.00)
Dividend received 0.05 0.05
Loan to related parties (net) (794.43) -
Bank deposit not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) (896.07) {3,073.82)
Interest received (finance income) 316.16 193.07
Net cash flows flow investing activities (B) (1,532.29) (4,022.71)
C.Cashflow from financing activities
Interest paid (1.24) (4.47)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities (C ) (1.24) (4.47)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B8+C) 299.81 (388.08)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 463.19 851.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 763.00 463.19
Components of Cash and cash equivalents :(refer note- 12)
Balances with banks
- In current account 762.57 462.86
- in dividend account = %
Cash In hand 0.43 0.33
763.00 463.19

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared using "Indirect method" set out in applicable Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

Summary of material accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

~ p Ny

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. no. 301{]035’5300005

=

per Vishal Sharma Veer Pal Singh Akhlas Ahmed
Partner Director Director

M.No, 096766 DIN - 01193306 DIN - 08973480
Place: New Delhi Place :New Delhi Place :Mew Delhi
Date: 15 May 2024 Date :15 May 2024 Date :15 May 2024



Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity for the vear ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

a. Eauity share capital

Particulars Amount
Equity shares of INR 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 01, 2022 30.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2
As at March 31, 2023 30.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year g
As at March 31, 2024 30.00
b. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus
General reserve Retained earnings Totl
Balance as at April 01, 2022 745.76 8,013.02 8,758.78
Profit for the year - 1,126.76 1,126.76
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax " (3.66) (3.66)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,123.10 1,123.10
Balance as at March 31, 2023 745.76 9,136.12 9,881.88
Profit for the year/period - 1,613.16 1,613.16
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax = 14.07 14.07
Total comprehensive income for the year/period - 1,627.23 1,627.23
Balance as at March 31, 2024 745.76 10,763.35 11,509.11
Summary of material accounting policies
3-41

Other notes on accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Rea. no, 301003E/E300005

s

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

%mi\ﬂk&&\

Director
DIN - 08973480

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
M.MNo, 096766

Place :New Delhi
Date :15 May 2024

Place :New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Date :15 May 2024

Date: 15 May 2024



Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

2.01

2.02

CORFPORATE INFORMATION

Relax Pharmaceuticals Privale Limited ("the Company”™) (CIN No.-U24231UP1997PTCO22390) was Incerperated on 31 July, 1997 under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 2, Behind employment exchange, Shastri Nagar, Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh-247001, India. Ttis a
Subsidiary Company of Mankind Pharma Limited, The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of pharmaceutical products and calibration services for
plant and equipments.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with resolution passed on May 15, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards {Ind-AS) financial
statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in sccordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 11 to the Companies
Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 11T}, These financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000),
except when otherwise indicated.

The financial stataments have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities:
i} Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measurad at fair value

ii) Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell

iii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/nen- current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reparting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restrictad from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting periad

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Alizkility is current when:

- 1t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for purpose of trading

- 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There s no unconditicnal right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non current.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Property, plant and eguipment

Praperty, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital worlk in progress is
stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses
directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit availed
wherever applicable.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects If the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
speclfic useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and eguipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All ather repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, The present value
of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset If the recognition criteria for a
provision are met.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

2.04

2.05

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
management. The useful life is as fallows:

Assetls Useful life (in years)
Building 30

Plant and Equipment 10-20

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8-10

Office Equipment 5

Electrical equipment and fittings 10

Computers 3

Metwork and servers &

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert. The residual values are not more than 5% of the
original cost of the assets. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the lease term of 90 to 99 years.

Intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets

Intangibile assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of intangible assets acguired in business combination is their fair
value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumuiated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure Is
reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure Is Incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic
lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amertization peried and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization peried or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes In accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and less when the assets are disposed off,

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life as under
Assets Useful life (in years)

Computer Software 3

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amaount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely Independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impalired and is written down te its recoverable amount.,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken inte account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate veluation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a periad of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company aperates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties
previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impalrment I recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previcus
revaluation surplus.
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2.06

()

For assets excluding intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assel's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recagnised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the assel does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eguity Instrument of anpther entity.

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
= Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (elther through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)

- Those measured at amortized cost

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business
model for managing them.

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical

expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value thraugh profit or loss,
transaction costs.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing compaonent or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient and are measured at
the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115, Refer to the accounting policies in section ‘Revenue from contracts with customers'.

In arder for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding. This assessment is referrad to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business medel.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers ta how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both,

Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCT are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair velue through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon deracagnition {equity
instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

]

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows {rather than to sell the instrurment
prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes) and;

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of EIR. EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipls over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, Lo the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractua! terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. The EIR
amortization is included in ether income in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss, This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.
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Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) Business Model Test : The cbjective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assefs; and

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of Lhe Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on principal amount cutstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FYTQCI category are measured initially as well as at each reparting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (QCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange
gains or losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCIL Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet al fair value with net changes in fair value recagnised in the statement
of profit and loss. This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at
fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and lass when the right of payment has been
established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecoanised (1.2, removed
from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fram the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a "pass through" arrangement and either;

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the assel, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and ebligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses{ ECL) model for measurement and recognition of Impairment loss on the
following financial asset and credit risk exposure

= Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FYTOCI);

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are intearal to the contractual terms,

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has net been a significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (& 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL)Y.

The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
= Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

= All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credil risk. Rather , it recognizes impalrment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reperting date, right from its initial recognition, The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of
trade receivables. The pravision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates pver the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for

forward locking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are
analysed.
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(ii}

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized s income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This

amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments s
described below:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset mests write-off criteria, the group does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

(c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses do net reduce the
carrying amaount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value, Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset
was measured at amortised cost is recognised In other comprehensive income as the accumulated impairment amount,

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs. All financial liabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of Ipans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade payables, trade deposits, retention
maney, liabilities towards services, sales incentive and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in lwo categories:
(i} Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value throuah profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not desianated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationship as defined by Ind AS 109. The separated embedded derivate are also classified as held for trading unless Lhey are designated as effective
hedaing instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon Initlal recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initlal date of recognition, and only
it the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 60 to 90 days of recoanition, Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not

due within 12 menths after the reporting period, They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using Effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original llability and the recognition of & new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the balance sheet if there Is a currently enforceable legal right ta
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basls, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity Instruments and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made anly if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s aperations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to [ts operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting peried following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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2.07

2.08

2.09

a)

b)

Investment in Subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the
investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee, The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through Its pawer over the investee. Thus, the
Company contrals an investee if and only If it has all the following:

(a) power gver the investes;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from Its involveient with the investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale, On disposal of investment, the difference between its
carrying amount and net disposal proceeds Is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss

Inventories
a) Basis of valuation:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any. However, materials and ather
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incerporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis,

b) Method of Valuation:

[

Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties,
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present Incation and condition.

i) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an apprapriate share of fixed and variable production overheads
and excise duty as applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacily of production facilities. Cost is
determined on moving weighted average basis.

i} Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxes

The income lax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assels and liabilities attributable to temparary differences and to unused tax losses. Tax expense for the year
comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recavered from the taxaticn authorities in accordance with

the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted In India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are
enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or equity).Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method or temporary differences arising between the Lax bases of assets and labllities and their carrying
arnounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax lisbilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred
income tax |s also not accounted for If it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction that Is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1} When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the

reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temparary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

1) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is

nol a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,
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i) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests In joint ventures, deferred tax assets

are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability Is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to Items recagnized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if
new information about facts and circumstances change, Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related
to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of
goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase
gains, All other acquired tax benefits realized are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contract with customers

The Company manufactures/ trades and sells a range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products. Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of
these products is recagnized at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and control has been transferred to the
customers. The Company has objective evidence that all criterion for acceptance has been satisfied.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods
and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

The Company considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations, to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company allocates a partion of the transaction price
to goods bases o its relative prices and also considers the Tollowing:-

(i) Variable consideration

The Company recognizes revenus from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If the consideration in & contract includes a variable amount, the Company
estimates the amaount of consideration to which it will be entitled In exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

(ii) Sales Return

The Campany accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns cancurrent with the recognition of revenue at
the time of a product sale. This allowance is based on the Company's estimate of expected sales returns. With respect to established
products, the Company considers its historical experience of sales returns, levels of inventary in the distribution channel, estimated shelf
life, product discontinuances, price changes of competitive products, and the introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each
of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets. With respect to new products introduced by the Company, such products
have historically been either extensions of an existing line of product where the Company has historical experience or in therapeutic
categories where established products exist and are sold either by the Company or the Company’s compelitors.

(b) Sale of service
Income from sales of service is recognized over the period of contract as per the terms agreed with the customers.

(c) Other Income
(a) Interest Income

For &l debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a sherter period, where appropriate, to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.11

(ii)

2.12

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term cbligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve manths after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employes benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment ta empioyees who have
completed four years and twe forty days or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based
on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.

The Gratuity Plan, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its investments maintained with Life insurance Caorporation of
India. The liabilities with respect to Gratuily Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance
sheet date, based upan which the Company contributes to the Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of
the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the
net defined benefit cbligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements
B) Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately In the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debil or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

b) Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excesses
recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

c) Other employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve manths after the end of the period in which the employee renders

the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the halance sheet date on the
basis of actuarial veluation.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recoanised in the period
in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive Income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Changes in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtaliments are recognised immediately in the
statement of profil and loss as past service cost,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities ta make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is avallable for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost
of right-of-use assets Includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cosis incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreclated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term ar the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
s calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section
‘Impairment of non-financial assets'.
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i1} Lease Liabilities

(i)

2.13

2.15

(ii)

At the cammencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rale are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the |2ase commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease llabilities is remeasured If there is a
maodification, a change in the lease term, & change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain 2 purchase cption). [t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
cansidered to be low value. Lease payments on shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions
will be complied with,

When the grant relates te an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Government grant refated to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non current liability as
deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the expectad lives of related assets.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Earnings Per Share

Basic sarmings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Far the purpese of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depaosits with an eriginal maturity of three months or
less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents Includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial
institutions, other short - term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the halance sheet.

Foreign currency
Functional and preseptation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the

functional currency'). The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functicnal and presentation
currancy,

Transactions and balances
Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are genarally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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(iii)

2.17

2.18

Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Nen-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise with
the exception of exchange differences on gain or loss arising on translation of nan-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value aain or loss is recognized in
OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI ar profit or loss, respectively).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

A provision Is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an cutflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation.
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is

material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the Increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible abligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is nol probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liabllity also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. the Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements unless the praobability of outflow of resources is remote.

Pravisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value al each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

either:
(i} In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(it) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to angther market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial statemants are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted{unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is slgnificant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred

between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole )
at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,
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a)

a)

b)

€)

d)

€)

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements.,

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, Logether with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it
is reasonably certain Lo be exercised, or any periods coverad by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease cantracts that include extension and termination aptions. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an econamic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Campany reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its contral and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the oplion to renew or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset):

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial staterments were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in
the assumpticns when they occur,

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the Interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Glven
the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, ar future changes to such assumptions,
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates,
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority,

Gratuity benefit

The cosl of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, & defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reparting date. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity correspending to the expected duration
of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Future salary increases and pension increases
are based on expected future inflation rates for India. Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 34,

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation Lechniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judament |s required in establishing fair values, Judgments include

considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments,

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment pravisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judament in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history «existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimales the asset's recoverable amount, An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
assel is considered impaired and Is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated bassd on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific ta the asset. In determining fair value less costs
of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or ather fair value indicators.




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

f)

a)

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix te calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experlence with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessmant of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs |s sensitive te changes in circumstances and of forecast economic cenditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
econamic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company's trade
receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Mote 11.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant portion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and residual value of Company's
assets are determined by Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year. The useful life is based on
histarical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Ministry of Corperate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting pelicies rather than their significant accounting policles. Accounting policy
information, together with olher information, 1s material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclesures of accounting policias, but not on the measurement, recegnition
or presentation of any items in the Company's financial statements

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it ne longer applies to transactions

that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The amendments had no Impact , if any, in Its financial
statements,

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ervors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates
has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policles require items in financial
staternents to be measured in a way that invglves measurement uncertainty, The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(This page has been intentionally leit blank)
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Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3.1 Right-of-use assets
Net carrying value :
Leasehold Land 57.56 58.43
57.56 58.43
Leasehold Land Total
Gross Carying value
Balance as at April 01, 2022 61.94 61.94
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 61.94 61.94
Additions - -
Disposals =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 61.94 61.94
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 2.64 2.64
Depreciation expense 0.87 0.87
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.51 3.51
Depreciation expense 0.87 0.87
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.38 4.38
Net Carrying value:
Balance as at March 31, 2023 58.43 58.43
Balance as at March 31, 2024 57.56 57.56

Note:
a) Right-of-use assets includes Leasehold land obtained on long term lease for Unit -1, Unit -2 and

Calibration Unit division.
b) The Company undisputedly possesses the lease deeds for all leasehold land held by the Company,

presented under 'Right of use’ in the above schedule.

(This page has been intentionally left blank)




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 Intangible assets

Net Carrying value:
Computer software 1.18 0.97

1.18 0.97

Computer software Total

Gross Carying value
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1.79 1.79
Additions = =
Disposals = :
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.79 1.79
Additions 0.74 0.74
Disposals E =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.53 2,53
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 0.35 0.35
Amortisation expense 0.47 0.47
Disposals - N
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.82 0.82
Amortisation expense 0.53 0.53
Disposals 2 ¥
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.35 1.35
Net Carrying value:
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.97 0.97
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,18 1.18

(This page has been intentionally left blank)




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
MNotes formina part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

5 Investment in subsidiaries

MNon- Current

Investment in unquoted equity instruments measured at

cast, fully paid up

Subsidiaries
Qualitek Starch Private Limited

Agaregate amount of unquoted investment

Agaregate amount of impairment in value of investments

6 Other Investments

Non- Current

Investment in unquoted equity instruments measured at
fair value through OCI, fully paid up

Other entities

Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited
Sirmour Green Environment Limited

Total

Agareqate amount of unquoted investment

Aaareqate amount of impairment in value of investments

(This page has been intentionalfy left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Face Value Units/ shares Amount Units/ shares Amount
per share
100.00 23,90,000 2,350.00 23,10,000 2,310.00
2,390.00 2,310.00
2,390.00 2,310.00
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fate Value Units/ shares Amount Units/ shares Amount
per share
10.00 2,500 0.25 2,500 0.25
10.00 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
1.25 P
1.25 1.25




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 Other financial assets
Non-Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposits and earnest money deposits 18.67 18.66
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months (refer note 0.91 0.85
(a) below)
19.58 __________ 19.51
Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposits and earnest money deposits 1.04 0.77
1.04 0.77

Notes:
a. Bank deposits include deposits of INR 0.91 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and INR 0.85 lacs as at March 31, 2023 are lien

marked with banks against which bank guarantees have been issued to government authorities.

8 Income tax assets and liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income tax assets
Income tax receivable (net of provisions) 76.01 76.01
76.01 76.01
Income tax liabilities
Income tax payable (net of advance tax) 37.12 41.77
37.12 41.77

(This page has been intentionally left blank)




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

9

10

Other assets

MNon-Current

(unsecured and considered good)
Capital advances

Prepaid Expenses

Current

(unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses

Advances Lo vendars

Balances with Government authorities
Government grant receivable

Movement of government grant receivable

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Receivable during the year

Received during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Inventories

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

unless otherwise stated)
(refer accounting policy 2.08)

Raw malerials and Packing materials
In hand

In transit

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores and spares

6.84 5.00
3T 1.32
12,15 6.32
14,56 12,19
0.90 36.14
396.55 342.13
412.01 390.46
As at As at
30 April 2024 March 31, 2023
- 108.18
- 108.18
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,377.80 1,742.15
41.93 0.93
462.91 636.14
67.89 7.53
14.20 14.20
1,964.73 2,400.95

(This page has been intentionaily left blank)




Relax Pharmaceuticais Private Limited
Naotes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As ot As at
—March 31, 2024
11 Contract balances

Contract balances includes followina:
(i) Trade reccivables
(valued at amortised cost)

Unsecured, considered good 75.31 3.87
Cradit impaired 0.80 5.21
Considered anod - Redated Parties (refer note 3450 1.195.17 2.055.95
1.271.28 2.065.03
Less; Allowance against expected credit loss r0.80% (5.21)
1,270.48 2,055,682
11.1 Trade Receivables aging schedule
As at March 31, 2024 =
Gt btiist Gutstanding for g periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months = Taotal
due P 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - 970,21 299.54 0.71 = = 1,270.48
considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivabies - Credit .60 0.80
imoaired
970,21 20054 073 = B 0,80 1.271.28
As at March 31, 2023
: Citrent but not Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
AR due Lessthan&  6months - 4 5 o 2.3 year More than 3 ot
Months 1year y i & hracks
Undisputed Trade Receivables - 1,910.60 147.06 216 = - 2,059.82
considered good
Undisputed Trade reczivable - credit 2 = = & = 5.21 521
immaired
1.910,60 147,06 2.16 - - 521 2,06503

a  Trade Receivable represents the amaunt of consideration (n exchange for goods or services transferred to the customers that is uncanditional. Trade recelvable are usualy non
interest bearing and average credit period Lo customears ranges upte 90 days.

b, No trade receivables or other receivables are due fron divectors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, In respect of trade or other
receivable due from Firms or Private Companies respectively in which any director |s director or a member, refer note belov:

Copmed Pharmacauticals P Ltd 129.88 84.02
Mankind Prime Labs Pyt Ltd 14.78 14.97
J.K. Print Packs 13,18 -
Qualitek Starch Private Limited 2.36 -
Mankind Agritech Private Limited 0.28 -
Pharma Force Lah 1147 17.14
Fharmalorce Excipients Private Limited 2.54 -
Mediforce Healthcare Private Limited 0.27 =
175.06 116,13

T The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the cxpected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit loss expenence and adjusted for
farward looking infor mation,
Receivables are desmed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on a case
{0 case basis with reference to the custemer's eredit quality and prevailing market conditions, Receivables that are classified as "past due’ in the below table are those that have not
been setdled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that customer

d. Movement in allowance for expected credit loss:

Balanca at the beoinning of the vear 541 %
Movement for the vear {d4.41Y) 521
Balance at the end of the year 0.80 5.21
g Trade receivables include balance of related parties TNR 1,195.17 lacs {March 31, 2023 INR 2,055,95 lacs) [refer note 34C).
F Trade receivables represent the amount of consideration for transfer of goods or services Lo the customers that is unconditional .
o The company's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 34E.
h.  There are no unbilled receivable.
12 Cash and cash eoulvalents As at As at
Balances with banks
- In current account 162.57 462.86
Cash in hand S | T
__763.00 303,19
Notes:
a. The Campany has no undrawn berroewing facilties as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023,
b, The above balances are used for the purpose of statement of cash lows.
€ There are nn restrictians with regard o cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period,
d, Short-tenm deposits are made of varying periads hetwesn one date to three months depending on the inmediate cash requirements of the Company and earn interest at the
respactive short-term deposits rates
Lt Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade recavable [Note 11} 1,270.48 2,055.82
Cash and cash equivalents (Hote 12) 763.00 463.19
Dther financial assats (Nate 7] 20.62 20.28
4,637,319 4,544.10

Other bank balances (Mote 13)
6,691.48 7,087.39




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
MNetes farming part of the for the vear ended March 31. 2024

_All amounts are in INR lacs uniess atherwise stated

13 COther bank balances

Fixed deposits with original maturity of mare than three months but remaining maturity of fess than lwelve months

Notes:
a. The deposit malntained by the compary with the banks earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates,

14 Laans
Current
{unsecured and considered good)
Loan to related parties

Notes:
a, The loans dassified a5 current are repayalile on demand,

(This page has been intentionally left blank}

As at As at
March 31. 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
4,637.39 4,544.10
463739 454310
794.43 .
794.43 =




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes formina part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2024

in INR I nless otherwise stated

15

Equity share capital

Authorised
300,000 equity shares of INR 100 each

(Previous year 300,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

30,000 equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid up
(Previous year 30,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)

Notes:

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having & par value of INR 100 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In
tha event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amount, The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

a) Issued eauitv cawpital

As at As at

300.00 300.00
30.00 30.00
30.00 30.00

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars r
Equity shares sutstanding at the beginning of the year
30,000 30.00 30,000 30.00
Add : Issued during the vear = = = o
Equity shares cutstanding at the end of the 30,000 30.00 30,000 30.00
year
{iiiy Details of shares held by the holding company
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Mankind Pharma Limited
- Eauitv shares 18.900 18,90 18.900 18.90
(iv) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 arch 31, 2
Numb % halding Numbers % holding
Equity shares
Mankind Pharma Limited 18,900 63.00% 18,900 63.00%
Brijashwar Dutt Tyagi 5,350 18.50% 5,550 18.50%
\Veer Pzl Sinah 2,550 8.50% 2,550 8.50%
Ariun Sinah 3,000 10.00% 3,000 10.00%
30,000 100.00% 30.000 100.00%

{v) Details of shares held by promoters:

M 24

S.No Promoter Name

Number of shares

% of total shares

% change during the

held Year
1 Mankind Pharma Limited 18,900 63% -
2 Mr. B.D, Tyeql 5.550 19% =
3 mr. veer Pal Sinah 2.550 9% -
3,000 10%

4 Mr. Arjun Singh

As at March 31, 2023

S.No Promoter Name

Number of shares

%a of total shares

% change during the

held vear
1 Mankind Pharma Limited 18.900 63.00% =
2 Mr. B.D, Tyaql 5.550 18.50% -
3 Mr. Veer Pal Singh 2.550 8.50% -
3.000 10.00% =

4 Mr. Ariun Singh




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

i6

16.1

16.2

Notes:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other equity
General reserve 745.76 745.76
Retained earnings 10,763.35 9,136.12
11,509.11 9,881.88
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 745.76 745.76
Transferred from retained earnings = =
Balance at the end of the year 745.76 745.76

Nature and purpose of reserves
The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a
dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total
dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to intreduction of Companies Act
2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been
withdrawn.

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,136.12 8,013.02
Profit for the vear 1,613.16 1,126.76
Other comprehensive income 14.07 (3.66)
Balance at the end of the year 10,763.35 9,136.12

Nature and purpose of reserves
The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a
dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total
dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act
2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been
withdrawn,

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013, Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

Retained Earnings are profits that the Company has earned till date less transfer to dividend or other distribution or
transaction with shareholders.




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
17 Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (net) (refer note 34A) 89.09 81.26
89.09 81.26
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 63.51 65.46
Provision for gratuity (net) (refer note 34A) 7.97 6.95
71.48 72.41

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

18 Deferred tax balances

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liabilities (166.93) (166.78)
Deferred tax assets (including MAT credit) 82.87 83.20
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) (84.06) (83.58)

Year ended March 31, 2024 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance

Balance Profit or loss comprehensive

Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (166,78) (0.15) # (166.93)
(A) (166.78) (0.15) - (166.93)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 38.68 6.47 (4.73) 40,41
Provision for disallowance under section 438 of 11.74 (0.13) - 11.62
Income Tax Act
MSME Dissalowance 2.00 2.00
Deferred Government Grant 31.46 (2.83) 28.63
Provision for Doubtful Debts L ol (1.11) 0.20
Provision for Slow moving inventories - - -
(B) 83.20 4.40 (4.73) 82.87
(A+B) (83.58) 4.25 (4.73) (84.06)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (83.58) (84.06)
Year ended March 31, 2023 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance

Balance Profit or loss comprehensive

Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (165.51) {1.27) - {166.78)
(A} (165.51) (1.27} - (166.78)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 28.34 9,11 1.23 38.68
Pravision for disallowance under section 438 of 10,58 1.16 - 11.74
Income Tax Act
Deferred Gevernment Grant 34.29 (2.83) - 31.46
Provision far Doubtful Debts 1.31 1.31
Provision for Slow moving inventories X
(B) 73.21 8.75 1.23 83.20
(A+B) (92.30) 7.48 1.23 (83.58
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (92.30) (83.58)

Note:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are beina offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governina taxation laws.

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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Note:

20

19.1

ow

21

As at

March 31, 2024
oOther liahilities

As at

March 31, 2023

Mon-current
Deferred Government arant (refer note below)

102.55 113.680
102.55 _ 113.80
Current
Statutory liabilities 12.38 13.16
Deferred Government arant (refer note below) 11,22 11.22
2360 2438

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company recelved the approval for capital subsidy amounting INR 138.38 lacs fer their manufacturing unit under the Central Investment Subsidy Scheme based
on the investment in plant and machinary. Out of approved amount, the Company received the amount of INR 30.20 lacs during the FY-2020-21 and rest amount of INR 108.18 lacs has been recaived

during the FY-2021-22. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contigencies attached to these grants, Such government grant is being amortised over the useful life of such assets.

Maovement of governmeant arank:

Opening balance

125.02 136.43
Add: grant received during the year - =
Less: government grant income (refer note 23) (11.25) (11.21)
Closing balance 113.77 125.02
Trade payables
Current
I tatal outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 31) 59,75 374.24
{5k total cutstanding dues of creditors cther than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,285.07 3,693.680
2,388.82 4,068.08
Trade Payable aging schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Unbilled for Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars the period Not due Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years
Tokal outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small
enterprises = 70.24 29.52 = = =
99.75
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
ises and o 56.12 1,465.29 766.90 " 0.76 u
enterprises and small entarprises 2,289.07
Total 56.12 1,535.53 796.41 - 0.76 - 2,388.82
As at March 31, 2023
. Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbillad for Not due Total
the period
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 2 years
Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small
enterprises - 218:45 155.79 = - » 374.24
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 42,75 2,306.49 543,80 0.76 . o 3,693.80
Total 42.75 3,024.94 999.59 0.76 - = 4,068.04
Mote:
The average credit pericd on purchases is upto 50 davs to 90 days for the Company. The Company however ensures that all payables are paid within the pre agreed credit limits.
Trade Payzbles include dus to related parlies INR 274.74 lacs (March 31, 2023 @ INR 536.58 lacs).
The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Nate 340,
Other financial liabilities
{(Valued at amortised cost)
Current
Pavable for purchase of property, plant and equipment 49.07 4.43
= 49.07 4.43
Mote:

Payable for purchase of property, plant and eguipment include due to related parties INR 49.07 lacs (March 31, 2023 @ INR Ml lars).
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31,2023

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of products 21,023.87 16,263.51
Sale of services 133.14 114.66
21,157.01 16,378.17
Disaggregated revenue information
St out below is the disanarenation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Seament
Type of goods/services Year ended Year ended
Vae ot gunds) service March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Sale of Pharmaceutical Preducts 21,023.87 16,263.51
Sale of Services 133.14 114.66
Total revenue from contracts with customers 21,157.01 16,378.17
Revenue by location of customers
India 21,157.01 16,378.17
Cutside India = =
Total revenue from contracts with customers 21,157.01 16,378.17
Timina of revenue recoanition
Goods transferred at a point in time 21,023.87 16.263.51
Services transferred over the time 133.14 114.66
Total revenue from contracts with customers 21,157.01 16,378.17
Contract balances As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables 1,270.48 2.059,82
Trade receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period generally falls in the range upte 90 days.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from custamer,
Reconciling the amount of revenue recoanised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Period ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Revenue as per contracted orice 21,157.08 16,382.51
Adiustments:
Sales return (0.07) (4.34]
Discount
21,157.01 16,378.17

Revenue from contracts with customers

Performance obligations

Sale of Products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods s satisfied when cenlrol of the goads is Lransferred to the customer, generally on

delivery of the goods and payment is generally dues within 90 days from delivery of goods (refer accounting policy 2.11).

Sales of services: The performance obligation in respect of calibration services is satisfied over a period of time and acceptance of the customer. [n respect
of these services, payment Is generally due upon completion of services and providing certificate to the customer (refer accounting policy 2.11}).

Other income

Interest income
Interest income earned an:

- bank depasits (at amortised cast] 279.26 165.89
- financial assets (at amortised cost) 1.41 0.85
- Interest from loan Lo related parties (at amortised cost) 27,14 -
Interest received on income tax refund 7 17.98
307.81 184.72
Other non-operating income
Dividend income from financial assets measured at FYTOC] 0.05 0.05
Scrap sales B5.13 87.84
Government arant income (refer note 19) 11.25 11.21
Gain on sale of preoerty. olant and eouioment (net) 12.42 0.7
Miscellaneous income 2.00 3.41
110.85 102.68
41B.66 287.40
L0 1
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24 Cost of raw material and components consumed
Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year (refer note 10)
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year (refer note 10)

25 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Opening Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress

Closing Stock:
Finished goods
Waork in progress

Net decrease/(increase)
26 Employee benefits expense
Salarles, wages, bonus and other benefits
Contribution to provident and other fund

Gratuity expense (refer note 344)
Staff welfare expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

1,743.08 4,463.55
16,597.34 10,258.74
18,340.42 14,722.29
{1,419.73) (1,743.08)
16,920.69 12,979.21
7.53 50.62
636.14 701.25
643.67 791.87
67.89 7.53
462.91 636.14
530.80 643.67
112.87 108.20
1,085.36 980.59
80.52 69.25
28.53 27.14
22,55 23.13
1,216.96 1,100.11

Note: The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received

presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in
into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been

when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the Company believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

27 Finance Costs

Interest on delay deposit of income tax
Other finance costs (refer note 32)

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intanaible assets (refer note 4}
Depreciation of Riaht-of-use assets (refer note 3.1)

the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come
issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code

1.24 4.47
7.51 6.51
B.75 10.98
218.15 206.00
0.53 0.47
0.87 0.87
219.55 207.34
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 31 March 2023
29 Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares 46.17 30.26
Power and fuel 453.82 332.29
Rent 0.47 1.22
Repair and maintenance

- Machinery 62.45 56.92

- Building 56.85 19.96

- others 13.84 12.54
Insurance 12.68 12.76
Rates and taxes 14,89 11.16
Travelling and conveyance 14.90 21.15
Printing and stationery 12.03 16.89
Freight cartage and other distribution cost 41.81 43.58
Director sitting fees 4.80 5.20
CSR expenditure (refer note 33F) 3171 32.92
Donation and contributions 0.51 -
Legal and professional charges 31.34 15.94
Payments to auditors (refer note below) 11.00 10.91
Testing and inspection charges 49.33 67.37
Bank charges 0.12 0.24
Allowance for expected credit loss = 5.21
Miscellaneous expenses 69.27 36.10
Total 927.99 732.72

Note:

Payments to the auditors (excluding input tax)
1 To statutory auditors
a) Audit fees 11.00 10.35

b) Reimbursement of expenses - 0.56
11.00 10.91

{This page has been intentionally left blank)
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30

30.1

30.2

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Income taxes

Income tax recoanised in the Statement of profit and loss

Current tax
In respect of the current vear

Adijustment in respect of tax relating to previgus vear

Deferred tax

In respect of the current yvear

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

The Income tax expense for the vear can be reconciled to the accountina profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Statutory income tax rate

Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate

Effect of Income that is exempt from taxation

Effect of expanses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Adjustments recognised in the current period in relation to the previous years

At the effective income tax rate of 26.236% (March 31, 2023: 26.211%)

Income tax recognised in ather comprehensive income

Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement qain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan

Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income

560,62 403.06
(0.67) 4.67
559.95 407.73
(4.25) (7.48)
(4.25) (7.48)
555.70 400.25
2,168.86 1,527.01
25.168% 25.168%
545.86 384.32
10.51 =
11.26
{0.67) 4.67
555.70 400.25
(4.73) 1.23
(4.73) 1.23

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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31

32

Earninas per eauity share

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares putstanding for the period/year. Diluted
earnings per eguity share has baen computed using the weighted average number af equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following refiscts the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit for the vear attributable 1o eauity halders TNR lacs
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Number
basic and diluted earning per share

Mominal Value of Eguity Shares INR
Basic earninas per sharg TNz
Diluted earnings per share Nk

MSMED disclosure

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 31 March 2023
1,613.16 1.126.76
30,000 30,000
100.00 100.00
5,372.20 3.755.87
5.377.20 3,755.87

Infermatian as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended 31 March
2023 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informatian available with the Company.

0]

(i)

(iil}

(iv)

()

The principal amount and the interest due lhlereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

- Principal amount

- Interest therean

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyand the appainted day during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
this Act

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year

The amount of further mterest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, untll such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid ta the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 af the MSMED Act, 2006

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

7824
21.51

21.51

(This place has been left blavk intentionally)
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33 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

A. Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Disputed tax liabilities

Demand raised by department u/s 143(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 for AY 17-18, AY 18-19, 246.10 320.04
AY 20-21 & AY 23-24.

246.10 320.04

Note: The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position is likely to be upheld in
the appellate pracess and accordingly no provision has been considered |n these financial statements for the tax demand raised. The
management believes that the ultimate cutcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial pasition

and results of operations,

During the year, the Income Tax Department (‘the department’) had conducted a search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 at
Company's premises. During the search proceedings, the Company has provided necessary information and responses to the department. Also,
the department has taken certain documents, data backups and other information for further investigation.

Subsequently, the Income Tax Department has issued notices under Section 148 of the Income Tax Act 1961 in October 2023 which requires
the Company to furnish income tax returns in response to notice under Section 148 of the Act for the assessment years 2020-21, 2021-22 and
2022-23. The Company has filed income tax returns in respanse to such notices under section 148 of the Act. Based on the returns filed in
response to section 148 and the assessment made by the management and its tax advisor, the Company is of the view that no material
adjustments are required to be made in these financial statements.

B Commitments
a) Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not 13.50 32.31
provided for (net of advances)

13.50 32.31

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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34 OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

A Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employes Benefits” (specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rule 2015 (a5 amanded from time Lo time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below:
Employee Benefits:

a Defined contribution plan

The Campany’s contribution to the Employees Provident Fund is dep d with the Reg I Provident Fund Con for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the

Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirernent benefit plan ta fund the benefics

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recoanised as expense for the vear is as under:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employer's Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) 38.24 36.37
38.24 36.37
b. Defined benefit plan = Gratuity plan

The Company's contribution towards its gratuity fability 1s a defined benefit retirement plan,

The employees’ Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, [s managed by the trust which maintains its s with Life [ e Corporation of India (LIC).

The aratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service usually gets a

gratuity an departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarlal valuation using the

Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each periad of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build

up the final obligation.

The gratuity liability arises an retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employes. The aforesaid liability s calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (i.e. last drawn

basic salary) for each completed year of service subject lo completion of five years sarvice.,

(i) Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks assoclated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks, These risks are:- (i) interest rate risk {discount rate risk), (i) mortality risk and (i} salary growth risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to
Government Bonds Yield. If plan liability is funded and return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit,

Interest rate nsk (discount rate risk} A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability

Maortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reference o the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants, For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Martality [2012-14) ultimate table.

A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

Salary growth risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabllity is lated with the of salary increase rate of plan
participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase af salary In future for plan partidpants from the rate of increase In
salary used to determine the present value of abligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability,

(i}  Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit abligation are as follows:
S, Particulars Refer note As At As At
No below March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7.22% 7.36%
Il. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 2 8.50% 10.00%
jii. Number of emplovees 204 229
Iv. Averaae remaining working life 21.37 23.04
v. Investment in LIC 100.00% 100.00%
Notes
1 The discount rate is based an the prevalling market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.
2 The eslimates of future salary Increases considered takes into account the inflatian, seniority, pramation and other relevant factors,
As At As At
{iill Demegraphic assumptions: March 31 2023

Retirement age 58

58
Maortality rate 100% of 1ALM (2012 - 100% of [ALM (2012 - 14)

141

Altrition rate

Upto 30 vears 14,46% 13.66%

From 31 to 44 vears 6.60% 6.94%

Above 44 vears 1.08% 1.67%
The fallowing tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recagnised in the Company’s financial statements:
a.  Net defined benefit expense (recognised in the Statement of profit and loss for the year)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

___March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current service cost 2204 23.11

el interest expenses (.49 4.03

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 28,53 27.14
b. Remeasurement {gain)/loss on the net defined benefit liability recognised in other comprehensive income:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024
181

Actuarial {galns)/iosses due Lo change in demographic assumptions

Actuarial {gains)/icsses due to chanae in financial assumotions
Actuarial (gains)/lesses due to change in experience variance

[25.91)

Actuarial faainsi/losses on Plan Assel
Compenent of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
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The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are (ncleded in the ‘Employee benefits expense ' in the statement of profit and |oss. The remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liatlily is included in the other comprehensive income.

€. The amount included in the Balance sheet arising from the entity “s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of Defined Benefit cbligation 190.02 160,23
Less: Fair value of plan assais [92.96) f92.02)
Unfunded status - deficit 87.06 BS8.21
Non Current 89.09 81.26
Cuurent 7.97 5.95

d. Reconciliation of epening and closing bal of Defined Benefit obli 1
Particulars As at As at
—_March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cpening defined benefit obligatian 180.23 146,52
Current service cost 22.04 23.11
Interest cost 1326 10.54
Benefits paid (6.01) {4.50%
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 19,501 4.26
Closing defined benefit obligations 0,02 180,23
e, Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Plan assets :

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 52.02 20,64
Actual income an plan assets A62 6.41
Fund management charges (0,55} (0.53)
Benefits paid (5.14) (4,500
Closing defined benefit obligations _52.96 952,02

f.  Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarlal assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase, The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined Lased on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period/year, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase|
Discount Rate (-/+0,5%) =
(% change compared te base due to sensitivity} 10;40 (8.61) 5t (9.67)
Salary Growth Rate {-/+0.5%)
[% change compared to base due to sensitivily } (8.83} G.47 (8.82) 9.45

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as itis unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projectad unit credit method at
the end of the reperting peqod, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet,

There was no change In the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis fram prior year,

tod definad |

fit obligation is as follows:

g. The expected maturity analysis of di

As at
March 31, 2023

As at

Expected cash flows over the next March 31, 2024

Within the next 12 months (next annual reparting perlod) 7.97 6.95
Between 2 and 5 years 35.93 35.29
More than 5 years 146,12 13799

190.02 180.23

h. The Company expects to contribute INR 31,82 lacs {March 31, 2023: INR 33.89 lacs) to the plan during the next financial year.

B Seament Information

a, Basis for segmentatian
The operations of the Campany are linited to one segment viz, Pharmaceutical products, which as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments” is considered the only reportable

seqgmient.

B. Geographic Segment
The Company cperates only in one Country and does not have any separate identifizble gecgraphic segment,

€. Major Customer
Revenue from one custemer of the Company's manufacturing business is [NR 189,373.35 lacs {31 Mar, 2023: INR 15,480.29 lacs) which i5 more than 10% of the
Company's total revenue, No other single customer contributes 10% or more to the Company s revenue for the year ended 31 March, 2024,

o!) Qe =
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Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

[+]

1]

2)

3

4]

Fair value measurements
Set out below, is & comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's hnancial nstroments:

Carrying Value Fair Value
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023

Fi ial instr by v

Financial assets at amartised cost

Trade Receivahles 1,270.48 2.059.82 1.270.48 2,059.82
Cash and cash eauvalents 763.00 463.19 763.00 463.19
Other Bank balances 4,637.39 4,544.10 4,637.39 4,544,110
Investment in subsidiaries® 2,390.00 2,310.00 2,350.00 2,310,00
Other Financial assets 20.63 20.28 20,62 20,28
9,081.49 9,397.39 9,081.49 9,397,39
Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCT)
Other Investments 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25
1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade Pavables 2,368.82 4,068,04 2,388 .82 4.068.04
Other financial liabilities 49,07 A4.43 45.07 4.43
2,437.89 4,072.47 2,437.89 4,072.47

The Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amaunt at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or fiquidation sale. The following haods and lons were used to the fair values:

The fair value of unquoted instruments, laans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other nen-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash
fiews using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being i toar y possiliie change in the foracast
cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity | 15 alsno wa byl change In the growth rates. The requires

to use unobservablz inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed m the tables below, M regularly a range of reasanably
possible alternatives for those signilicant unabservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using effective interest rate (EIR) methad using discount rate that reflects the issuer's

Barrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2024 was assessed to be insignificant.

i, Hiak are

Long-term rec

risk characteristics ofthe financed preject. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

d by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the counterparty and the

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a qu y5ls as at
31 March 2024, are as shown below:
Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following higrarciy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1; auoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techiioues for which all inouts that have a sianificant effect on the recarded fair value are observable. either directly or indirectly
Level 3: technlgues that use inputs that have a sionificant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based an observable market data
CQuantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2024

Carrying Value Fair Value

March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amaortised cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade Receivables 1,270.48 - = 1,270.48
Cash and cash eouivalents 763.00 - 763,00
Other Bank balances 4,637.39 = 4.637.39
Investment in subsidiaries* 2,380.00 - & 2.390.00
Other Financial assets 20.62 - 20.62
Assels carried at OCI for which fair value are disclosed
Other Investments 1,25 = - 1.25
Liabilities carried at amartised cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade Pavables 2.188.82 = - 2,388,872
Other financial liabilities 49.07 = 49.07
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2023

Carrying Valug Fair Value

March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Leyel 3
Assets carried at amaortised cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade Receivables 2,055.82 = 2.059.82
Cash and cash eauivalents 463.19 = 463,149
Other Bank balances 4,544.10 = = 4,544,170
Investment in subsidiaries® 2,310.00 = 2.310.00
Other Financial assets 20.28 - 56,69
Assets carried at amortised cost far which falr value are disclosed
Other [nvestments 1.25 - + 1.25
Liabilities carried at amortised cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade Pavables 4.068.04 - - 5,789.51

4.43 12.62

Qther financial liabilities

MNote:

The management assessed that cash and cash egquival , trade receivable
short-term maturities of these instruments.

trade payabl

*#]vestment in subsidiaries have been measurad at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statements”

and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the




Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

E

Financial risk management obiectives and policies

The Company's principal financial habilities, other than derivatives, comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose af these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's
operations. The Company's principal inancial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash eguivalents that are derived directly fraom its operations.

The Campany's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's seniar G oversees 1he of these risks, The senior professionals warking ta manage the finaneial risks and the appropriate financial risk gevernance
framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors, This process provides assurance to Company's senior il it that the Company's financial risk-taking
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risk are identified d and ged in accordance with Company policies and Company risk
objective,

The Board of Direclors revizws and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as helow:
fa) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Markel prices comprises three types of risk:
currency rate risk, interest rate sk and ather price risks, such as equity price rick and commodity price risk. Financial instruments atfected by market risks include loans and borrowings,
depasits and foreign currency receivables and payables, The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at reporting date, The analysis exclude the Impact of
movements in market variables on: the carying values of gratuity and ather post-reti abligations; provisions; and the non-fi jal assets and |iabilties. The sensitivity of the
relevant Profit and Loss itern and equity is the effect of the assumed changes in Lhe respective market risks. This |5 based on the financial assets and financial labilities held as of 31

March 2024.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a Tinancial instrument will fluctuate barause of changes in foreign exchange rates.

{ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Company s not exposed to any inlerest rate nsk as It does not have financial assets or liabilities the wvalue of which will be effected on account of change in market interest rales
except a5 mentioned below.

(iii) Commadity Price Risk

The Company Is not exposed Lo any olher risk as it daes not have finandal assets or liabilities the value af which will be effected on account of change in any olher facter or risk,

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Campany has adapted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient callateral, where appropriale, a5 a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults, The Company regularly monitars its
counterparty limits by reviewing the outstanding balance and ageing of the same.

Possible creditrisk Credit risk management

Tredit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to 2 financial instrument fails
to mest its contractual ohligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from eustomers and
investiment securities, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers Lo which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. The Campany establishes an allewance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate
of incurred losses In respect of trade and cther recelvables and investments.

Credit risk related to trade recaivables

Receivables are deemed 1o be past due ar impaired with reference to the Company's normal terms and conditions
of business, These terms and conditions are determined on a case Lo case basis with referznce to the customer's
credit quality and prevailing market conditions, Receivables that are classified as ‘past due” in the above lables
are thase that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that customer.

Company holds bank balances with reputerd and ereditworthy banking (nstitution within the approved exposures
fimit of each bank, None of the Company's cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or
impaired,

Credit risk related to hank balances

The carrying vahee of financial assets other than cash represents the maxlmum credil exposure, The masimum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets.

(e} Liquidity

The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs 8s well as for long-term investment programime mainky in growth projects, The Company generates sufficient cash
flows Trom the current operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and shart-term investiments pravide liguidity both in the short-lerm as well as in the long-

term.

The Company remains committed to mamtaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratic, il jing and str hening its balance sheet, The maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilitias basad on the rermaining pericd from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the tahle below, The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash

obligation of the Company.

As at 31 March 2024

_Einancial liabilities Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Total

Trade payabies 2,388.82 = 2,388.82
Qther linancial kabilities 49.07 5 49.07
Total 2,437.89 - 2,437.89

As at 31 March 2023

Financial liabilities Less ar s Tatal

Trade payables 4.068,04 - 4,068.04
Other financial liabilities 443 - 443
Total 4,072.47 = 4,072.47
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F  Corporate social responsibility
A5 per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has (o incur at least 2% of average net prolits of the preceding three financial years tawards Corporate Social
Respansibility {"CSR"). Accordingly, a CSR commilles has heen formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule Y11 of the Companies Act, 2013, Delals are as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Ma
Gross ameunt reouired Lo be spent as per section 135 of the Act 3171 32.92
Amount aporoved by Lhe Board ta be soent during the vear i 3292

Amount soent durina the oerad/vear on
[} Constructions acauisition of assets - s
fii} On puroose other than above i1 32,92

Details related to soent [ unsoent oblioations:
i} Contribution ta Public Trust - s
(i) Contribution to Charitable Trust i1z 32.92
(i} Unspent amount in relation to:
- Onaoing proiect

- Other than onaoing orolect

Total Amount Spent 31.71 32.92
Total t rec ised in the of orofit and loss 3171 32.92
Amount Yet to be spent / (Excess soent during the vear) . g

G Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capilal includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company, The primary
objective of the Comy ‘s capital istor Ise the sharehaolder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, IFany. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company reviews the fund management at reqular intervals and take necessary actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

Mo changes were made in Lhe objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

35 Leases

(iy The Company's lease assel primarily consist of leases for land having lease term of 68 to 95 years,
(iiy The following is the summary of practical expedients elecled on initial application:
{a) Anlied a sinale discount rate o a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date
b} Applied the exemption not (o recoanize riaht-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application
te') Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at tne date of nitial apolication
(i) Applied the practical expedient by not reassessing whether a contract is, or cantains, a lease a1 the date of initial application. Instead applisd the standards only to contracts that
viare previously dentilied as leases under ind AS 17.

(&' Used hindsiaht in determining the lease term where the contract contained ootions to extend or terminate the lease
{ily The weiahted averane ineremental borrowing rate aoolied to lease fiabilities as at Aoril 1. 2019 15 B.5%

{iv) Following is carrying value of right of use assels recognised and the movements thereof during the year ended March 31, 2024:

Farticulars ght of Use Asset
Leasehold Land Tatsl

Balance as at April 1, 2022 59.30 59.30

Additions during the year

Deletion during the year -
Depreciation of Right of use assels (refer note 27) (0.87)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 58.43

Additions during the year
Deletion during the year

|Decreciation of Riult of use assets (reler pote 20) (0.87)
Balance as at March 31, 2034 57.56

36 Exemption from Ci lidated financial
The Company has used exemption from consolilation as per Ind AS 110 in respect af its subsidiary "Qualitek Starch Private Umited” for the year ended March 31, 2023 as It complies
with the folluwing conditions:

i} The Company is a partially-owned subsidiary of Mankind Pharma Limited and all its other members do not ohject ta the company not p [%

1 financial st *

il} The Company is net listed nor in the process of listing on any stock exchange, whether in India or gutside India.
{liy The ultimate halding campany |.e. Mankind Pliarma Limited files consalidated Financial Statements with the Registrar,

37  The fioures have been rounded off 1o the nearest Lac of rupees unto two decimal olaces,
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Ratio analvsis and its elements
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Ratio Numeratar Denominator March 31, March 31, % Change Remarks
2024 2023
Current Ratio Currept Assels Current Liabilities 3583 2.34 64% Refer Lo remark L below
Beturn on Equity  Wet Profits after taxes - Average Sharshoider’s 15.04% 12.05% 25% Refer to remark 2 below
ratio Preference Dividend Equity
Inventory Cost of goods seld Average Inventory 7.80 343 127% Refer to remark 3 below
Turnover ratio
Trade Recelvable Mot credit sales = Gross  Average Trade 12.71 612 108% Refer to remark 4 below
Turmover Ratio credit sales - cales return Recelvable
Trade Payahle et credit purchases = Average Trade 5,14 2.08 147% Refer to remark 5 below
Turnover Ratio Gross credit purchases Payaliles
purchase rmturn

Het Capital Met sales = Total sales - Working capital = 290.90% 289.97% 0%
Tumover Ratio sales retum Current assels -

Current liabilities
Het Profit ratio wet Profit MNet sales = Total sales - 7.62% 6.88% 11%

sales return
Return on Capital  Earnings before interest  Capital Employed = 18.74% 15.39% 22%

Employed

Remarks

and taxes

Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax liabality

1. Current ratio has increased primarily due to loan given to related party.
2. Return on Equity ratio has increased primarily due to increase in profit during the year,
3. Inventory Turncver ratio has increased primarily due Lo increase in average inventory. The said increase has been mitigated to some extent by decrease in cost of goods soid during

the year,

4, Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio has increased primarily due to increase in revenue dunng the year,
5. Trade payable Turnover Ratio has increased primarily due Lo Increase in cost of goods sald during the year. The sald inreased s accompanied by decrease in average trade payable.

6. The ratios which are not apphicable to the company have not been disclosed above,

The Company has used accounting softivare for maintanin
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,
for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access right. Further, in respect of a software usad for

e of iny

g its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
excapt that audit trail feature Is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with certain privileged access rights and also
i for select «

audit trail feature was

not enabled, Furthar no instance of audit trail leature being tampered with was noted in respect of other accounting saltwand

Other Information

(i) The Company does not have anv charoes or satisfaction which s vet to be recistered with ROC bevond the statutory nerod.
{ii] The Comupany have not traded or invested In Cryoto currency or Virtual Currency during he financial vear

(i) The Company have not advanced or leaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

Intermediary shall:

() directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in-any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of

(b)pravide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Benaliciaries
(iv) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding [whether recorded In writing or

otherwise) that the

(2} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities

Company shall:

(b} provide any guarantes, security or the |ike an behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

the eompany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

ientified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(v} The Company have not any such transactian which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisicns of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Naote Mo.1 ta 40 form intearal part of the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss.
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